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                                            The Coat-of-Arms

                             of Stary Oskol

                                       The   Coat-of-Arms   of   Stary Oskol  

                                       was  established in  1780.  It has  a  riffle and 

                                      a   golden   plough.   It   should    be   understood   

                                      as   follows: the inhabitants of the town  are  the         

                                      ancient     warriors,    who  practice   ploughing                

                                                  under   peace-time   conditions.

Stary Oskol is situated in the Northern part of Belgorod region.      Primeval history of Oskol region is restored according archeological findings, and shows that settling process of primitive human beings was a complicated and long one. Human beings successfully settled in Oskol region only when they learnt how to make tools from stone and bones, how to control fire and build warm and solid dwellings. 

Primitive men of Stary Oskol region mostly hunted rein-deer, wild horses, mammoths and so on. When pottery and ceramics appeared, new Stone Age began, which brought ground axes made of granite, jade and bones. Archives dated between the 14th and the 17th  centuries describe first villages of Stary Oskol region, which appeared at sites of ancient settlements. 

Oskol is mentioned in various chronicles, books, and science works of those times. Scientists consider the name “Oskol” to origin from old Slavonic word “Oskol”, which meant Russian “oskolok” (“splinter” in English) and the verb “oskalyat’” (means “expose” in English), since landscape of the region is famous for its irregular relief – gullies, hollows and downs are the evidence. 

Stary Oskol region becomes part of ancient Russia in 9-10 centuries, because of growing military threat from steppe inhabitants. Nomad attacks force Russians to take preventive measures and to build fortifications and fortresses. Oskol citizens defend south-eastern borders of Russian state, and in 1500 Oskol and Oskol region enter Moscow princedom. 

In 1571 a frontier fortress Oskol called Ustoublinsky ostrog is built, and since that date the settlement has had the official status of a town. In 1655 the town got the name of Stary Oskol, as another one was renamed to Novy Oskol. 

In the 17th  century Stary Oskol is no more a bordering town – Russian borders move away and offer perfect opportunities for inhabiting vacant lands and ploughing up virgin lands. Home crafts start flourishing, and industries develop. Trade objects include honey, bread, wax, bristle and other agricultural and craft products. In 1780 Stary Oskol authorities approve plan and coat-of-arms of the town. 

In the 18th century Stary Oskol has complete social and economic basis, and its territorial borders remain the same throughout the following century. Industry and trade needs cause opening of the first City Public bank in the second half of the 19th century. The town has several primary schools, which are free of charge. Secondary education is given in colleges and gymnasia, where student pay for training. In the 19th century the town is an important commercial center with a number of fairs. Till present days locals preserve the tradition of regular trade fairs and public festivals and holidays.

Nowadays Stary Oskol is an important mining town of iron ore, situated at the border of the Kursk magnetic anomaly, one of the largest deposits of iron ore worldwide. More than eight million tons of iron ore are mined here per year. Among other natural  resources  are  coal,  sand,  phosphorite  and  others. 

Stary Oskol may be divided into two parts: a modern one and a historical center of the city. The center of Stary Oskol has a great number of ancient houses that still preserve their original look. Regardless modern high-rise buildings, old mansions and narrow streets still define the image of the city.

We invite you to make a tour around our city. We shall offer you a few routs: cultural, educational, industrial and holy. It’s up to you which one to choose.
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Sanctities of Stary Oskol
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St. Alexander   Nevsky                                                Cathedral

1903

4, Tokarev St.

St. Alexander Nevsky Cathedral was built in 1903 in the former Gumny hamnet which was settled in the XVII century to the west of the town jail along the Oskolets river.  

The temple was built in the eclectical style with the use of ancient architecture elements. It has the altar in honour of Alexander Nevsky. 

To the right of the church is buried Mikhail Ivanovich Vinnikov – the most significant donator.

St. Alexander Nevsky Cathedral is the soul of Stary Oskol, it is a pearl of spiritual culture of the city.

In connection with the establishment of the Belgorod and Stary Oskol

Eparchy in 1995, Sergey Popov, was made Johann, the Bishop of Belgorod

and Stary Oskol. In 2003 the temple celebrated its hundredth anniversary. 

The history  of the cathedral as well as the history of many other churches of Holy Russia is both tragic and glorious.
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                                   In 1932 the church was closed. During the Great Patriotic                     fascists  wanted  to  ruin  the Church but they failed. In

                                  1945  the  church  was  opened  again  and  the spiritual

                                   life of the parishioners  gradually began to come right.

                                            From August, 16 1994 Alexei Dmitrievich Zorin is the

                                        abbat of St. Alexander Cathedral.

                                        In  October  1994  a  Sunday school  for  children   and

                                         a  parochial  orthodox  library   were  established  at St.                               St. Alexander Cathedral.  

                                         There are more than 111 000 books and booklets in it.  

                                         St.  Alexander  Cathedral  has  close  relations with the           

     kindergarten #44 situated in Olminsky R.A. 

     In  1998  the Sunday School at St. Alexander Cathedral was reorganized into  

     Orthodox  gymnasium  into  the  name  of  St. Prince Alexander Nevsky. 140      

     pupils study in it.   

     From   August,  1  1996  the  newspaper  “Orthodox   Word”  started  being    

    published.  From November 28 it was renamed into  “Orthodox  Oskol Land”  

     and became   a weekly.

    The  daily   TV  programme   “The  Cronicle”   has  been  broadcasted  since       

    December, 2005.

[image: image7.jpg]


The Church of the Holy Trinity 

1730, 1858

17, Bolshevistskaya St.

One of the ancient churches of Stary Oskol is the Holy Trinity Church. It was built in 1730 in the centre of Streletskaya hamnet which was settled in the XVII century to the south-east of the town jail  across the Oskol river. 

There are three altars in it: the main –into the name of St. Trinity, to  the right of the main alter – the one in honour of the Kazan  Mother Mary icon, to the left – into the name of St. Nicolas. 

 The Chapel of the Holy Trinity Church was built at the beginning of the XIXth century in Bolshevistskaya St. For many years it has been used as a storehouse. In 1994 the Church was reconstructed.
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Il’inskaya Church

1878

223/1, Proletarskaya St.

     Il’inskaya Church  was built in 1878 and is situated in the Northern part of Yezdotskaya hamnet which was settled in the XVII century to the North of the city  jail in the intersection of  the roads to Kursk and Voronezh.

         Above the Tzar’s Gates there are angels’ figures. In the central part there are medallions with the saints’ images. The scenes from the Jesus’  life prevail in the dйcor of the church.
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        The Church of the Death 

of the Blessed Virgin                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        1994

The City Cloister

       The church is situated in the city cloister. The walls of the church are made of red brick. A small church is  put on a high platform the entrances on which are built from the south and west sides. There are no frescos in the church yet.
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 The Church of Ascension 

1878

                         30, Mir St.

    The church was built in 1878 in Kazatskaya sloboda. It was built in the times of eclectic with the elements of classicism. In the 60-s the church was ruined and restored at the end of 80-s. All the windows have the arched shape. All the remises are  connected through the arched   openings.

The Holy Cross Temple
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(Krestovozdvizhensky Temple) 

1787, 1805

Z. Kosmodemianskaya St.

The second of the most early saved temples of Stary Oskol is the Krestovozdvizhensky Temple which was built in 1787 in the centre of Yamskaya hamnet.

There three altars in the church: in the honour of the Holy Cross, in the honour of  the Invigorating Spring of  the Virgin Mary  and into the honour of St. Mitrofany Voronezhsky. 

The windows in the church are of arched shape and are situated in the  centres   of the Northern and Southern parts of the church.

The parts of the windows, the arched openings and the icons are decorated with the stucco mouldings.

 There are frescos on the walls. They are mostly devoted to the Jesus’         life.  
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The temples on the territory of Rus’ are the keepers of  the history of  the Russian Orthodox Church. 

Stary Oskol is the city of rich spiritual  traditions.

In 1996 His Holiness the  Patriarch of All Russia Alexiy II visited our city.         

